FBAR Requirements for Business Foreign Bank Accounts
Making Sound Compliance Decisions for Reporting Foreign Accounts Under Final IRS Regs
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2014, 1:00-2:50 pm Eastern

IMPORTANT INFORMATION
This program is approved for 2 CPE credit hours. To earn credit you must:
•

Attendees must stay connected throughout the program, including the Q & A session, in order to qualify for full
continuing education credits. Strafford is required to monitor attendance.

•

Listen on-line via your computer speakers.

•

Record verification codes presented throughout the seminar. If you have not printed out the “Official Record of
Attendance,” please print it now (see “Handouts” tab in “Conference Materials” box on left-hand side of your computer
screen). To earn Continuing Education credits, you must write down the verification codes in the corresponding spaces found
on the Official Record of Attendance form.

•

Please refer to the instructions emailed to the registrant for additional information. If you have any questions, please
contact Customer Service at 1-800-926-7926 ext. 10.

WHOM TO CONTACT
For Assistance During the Program:
-On the web, use the chat box at the bottom left of the screen
If you get disconnected during the program, you can simply log in using your original instructions and PIN.

Tips for Optimal Quality

FOR LIVE EVENT ONLY

Sound Quality
When listening via your computer speakers, please note that the quality
of your sound will vary depending on the speed and quality of your internet
connection.
If the sound quality is not satisfactory, please e-mail sound@straffordpub.com
immediately so we can address the problem.
Viewing Quality
To maximize your screen, press the F11 key on your keyboard. To exit full screen,
press the F11 key again.

Program Materials

FOR LIVE EVENT ONLY

If you have not printed the conference materials for this program, please
complete the following steps:
•

Click on the ^ symbol next to “Conference Materials” in the middle of the lefthand column on your screen.

•

Click on the tab labeled “Handouts” that appears, and there you will see a
PDF of the slides and the Official Record of Attendance for today's program.

•

Double-click on the PDF and a separate page will open.

•

Print the slides by clicking on the printer icon.
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Bank Secrecy Act of 1970 requires U.S. persons to file
reports and keep certain records of information about
their foreign accounts.



Authority to enforce FBAR reporting and record keeping
requirements was delegated to FinCEN, a bureau of the
Treasury Department.



In April 2003, FinCEN delegated the civil enforcement
authority of FBARs to the IRS.
 IRS can impose civil penalties.
 IRS was tasked with revising FBAR form and
instructions.



FBAR Form TD F 90-22.1 in effect for filings prior to June
30, 2013, is now replaced by FinCen Form 114, which
must be filed electronically.
7







On February 24, 2011, the Treasury
Department published final FBAR regulations.
31 C.F.R. § 1010
Final FBAR Regulations became effective
March 28, 2011, and apply to FBARs required
to be filed for the tax year 2010, due on
6/30/2011, subsequent years, as well as any
FBARs for prior years which were deferred.
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Each U.S. person who has a financial interest in or
signature or other authority over a foreign
financial account must make a report of those
relationships on an FBAR for each calendar year
during any part of which the aggregate value of
all the accounts exceeded $10,000.



The FBAR must be filed with the Treasury
Department on or before June 30 of the
succeeding year.



There is no extension available for filing an FBAR.
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U.S. person
□ United States person means
□ U.S. citizens;
□ U.S. residents;
□ Entities, including but not limited to, corporations,
partnerships, or limited liability companies, created or
organized in the United States or under the laws of the
United States; and trusts or estates formed under the laws
of the United States.
◦

The federal tax treatment of an entity does not determine
whether the entity has an FBAR filing requirement. For example,
a disregarded entity for purposes of income taxes, must file an
FBAR, if otherwise required to do so. Similarly, a trust for which
the trust income, deductions, or credits are taken into account by
another person, must file an FBAR, if otherwise required to do so.
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Financial account
□ A financial account includes any bank, securities, securities
derivatives or other financial instrument accounts. The term
includes any savings, demand, checking, deposit or other
account maintained with a financial institution or other
person engaged in the business of a financial institution.

□ A financial account also includes a commodity futures or
options account, an insurance policy with a cash value (e.g., a
whole life insurance policy), an annuity policy with a cash
value, and shares in a mutual fund or similar pooled fund with
a regular net asset value determination and regular
redemptions.
□ Offshore hedge funds and private equity funds which are not
offered to the public will not constitute financial accounts
reportable on FBARs..
□ Individual bonds, notes or stock certificates; and safe deposit
boxes are not defined as financial accounts.
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Financial interest
□ U.S. person has a financial interest in each financial account
where such person is the owner of record or has legal title,
whether the account is maintained for his or her own benefit
or for the benefit of others.
□ U.S. person deemed to have a financial interest over financial
accounts if the owner of record or holder of legal title is:
 A person acting as an agent, nominee, attorney or in some
other capacity on behalf of the U.S. person;
 A corporation in which the U.S. person owns directly or
indirectly more than 50% of the total value of shares of
stock, or more than 50% of the voting power for all shares
of stock;
 A partnership in which the U.S. person owns more than 50%
of the profits or the capital of the partnership;
 A trust in which the U.S. person either has a present
beneficial interest in more than 50% of the assets or
receives more than 50% of the current income.
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Signature authority

□ A U.S. person has account signature authority if that
person can control the disposition of money or other
property in the account by direct communication
(whether in writing or otherwise) to the bank or
other financial institution that maintains the
financial account.

Other authority

□ Where a U.S. person can exercise power that is
comparable to signature authority over an account
by communication with the bank
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There are filing exceptions for the following United States
persons or foreign financial accounts:
◦ Certain foreign financial accounts jointly owned by spouses;
 Financial accounts required to be reported are jointly owned;
 One spouse reports them on timely filed FBAR;
 Both spouses sign the FBAR

◦ Consolidated FBAR;
 If an entity is named in a consolidated FBAR filed by a greater than
50% owner of such entity, then it is not required to file a separate
FBAR.

◦ Correspondent/Nostro Account;
 Correspondent/Nostro account maintained by banks and used solely
for bank-to-bank settlements are not required to be reported.
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◦ Foreign financial accounts owned by a government
entity;
 A foreign financial account of any governmental entity
of the U.S. is not required to be reported. Includes the
States, the District of Columbia, all United States
territories and possessions, and the Indian lands. Also
includes a college or university owned by, or operated,
by a governmental entity.

 Foreign financial accounts owned by an
international financial institution;
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◦ IRA owners and beneficiaries;
◦ Participants in and beneficiaries of tax-qualified retirement
plans, which hold foreign accounts on behalf of a plan;
◦ Trust beneficiaries, but only if a U.S. person reports the
account on an FBAR filed on behalf of the trust;
 If the trust, trustee of the trust, or the agent of the trust:
(1) is a United States person; and
(2) filed an FBAR disclosing the trust’s foreign financial
account.

◦ Foreign financial accounts maintained on a United States
military installation abroad.
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Exceptions that apply for officers and employees of entities with signature or
other authority, and no financial interest in the account, for an account owned
directly by that entity.
◦ An officer or employee of a publicly held entity, whether foreign or domestic,
with a class of equity securities, listed on any U.S. national securities exchange;
◦ An officer or employee of a U.S. subsidiary of a U.S. entity with a class of
securities listed on a U.S. national securities exchange if the subsidiary is
included in a consolidated report filed by the U.S. parent;
◦ An officer or employee of a bank that is examined by federal authorities;
◦ An officer or employee of an entity that has a class of securities registered (or
American depository receipts in respect of equity securities registered) under
section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act;
◦ An officer or employee of a financial institution that is registered with and
examined by the Securities and Exchange Commission or Commodity Futures
Trading Commission; and
◦ An officer or employee of an authorized service provider where there is an
account owned or maintained by an investment company that is registered with
the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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On June 17, 2011, FinCEN issued Notice 2011-2 to provide
an extension of time to file for certain officers or
employees of investment advisors registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission who have signature
authority over, but no financial interest in, foreign
financial accounts of their employer. The filing deadline
for employees and officers to report signature authority
over these accounts was similarly extended to June 30,
2012.
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Due to additional questions and concerns
regarding the filing exceptions, FinCEN
extended the deadline for those persons
identified in Notice 2011-1 and Notice 211-2
until June 30, 2014.

19

•
•
•

•
•

•

Effective July 1, 2013, all FBARs must be filed electronically.
Electronic filing is mandatory.
Delinquent FBARs filed after June 30, 2013, must be filed
electronically.
FinCEN Form 114 replaces Form TD F 90-22.1.
Form 114a, Record of Authorization to Electronically File FBARs, is
signed by taxpayer(s) and authorizes practitioner to file FBARs on
behalf of taxpayer(s).
Bank Secrecy Act E-Filing System:
http://bsaefiling.fincen.treas.gov/main.html

20
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FBAR Information Requirements &
Related Filings
Kelley C. Miller
Reed Smith LLP
kmiller@reedsmith.com

Information that must be reported on the FBAR
• When do you have an interest in an account or asset?
• Ownership of accounts

• See, Instruction to Form TD F 90-22.1
• Owner of record/legal title
• Financial interest:
• Agent, nominee, attorney, or income other capacity on behalf of the
U.S. person;
• A corporation in which the U.S. person owns directly or indirectly more than 50
percent of the total value of shares of stock;
• A partnership in which the U.S. person owns an interest in more than 50 percent
of the profits; or
• A trust in which the U.S. person either has a present beneficial interest in more
than 50 percent of the assets or from which such person receives more than 50
percent of the current income

• Signature authority
• Notice 2010-23
• Examples
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Information that must be reported on the FBAR

• Exceptions for those with signatory authority:
• Officers or employees
• No financial interest
• Account owned directly by the company

• Examples:
• SA - Foreign financial accounts indirectly owned by
company

• SA - Foreign financial accounts owned by a foreign
subsidiary
24

Information that must be reported on the FBAR
• How are maximum account or asset values determined and
reported?
• Use of periodic account statements
• Conversion issues
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Related filings - Form 8938
• Who must file Form 8938?
• What are Form 8938 reportable interests (FBAR v. 8938)?

• What is reported on the Form 8938?
• How are Form 8938 asset values determined?
• Contrast assets reportable on FBAR v. Form 8938
26

Related filings - Form 5471
• What is Form 5471? Who is required to file?
• What information must be reported on Form 5471?

• When is Form 5471 due?
• Penalties for failure to file
• Practice observations
27

E-Filing of FBAR
Presented By:
John Colvin
Colvin + Hallett

FinCEN – Notice of Rulemaking 2011 (76 F.R.
57799)
29
•

Proposed that most Bank Secrecy Act Reports (including FBAR) be filed only via efiling – no more paper

•

Problems with paper reports:
•
Some mail delayed and damaged;
•
Filers not made aware of problems with filing until months later, or only on audit.

•

Financial institutions had been able to e-file most reports (CTRs, etc.) since 2002.

•

FinCEN’s Filing system was substantially upgraded and modernized in 2010-2011.

•

The database will now accept XML-based dynamic reports as well as certain other file
formats.

•

128 bit single socket layer (SSL) protected filing system.

•

In August of 2011, FinCEN expanded the system to permit FBARs to be filed
electronically.

BSA E-Filing Compliance
30

• E-Filing for most forms (not including FBARs) has been

required since July 1, 2012.

• In November 2012, still seeing only about 88% compliance

with electronic filing requirement.

• FinCEN embarked on relatively successful outreach program.
• By November 2013, e-filing compliance for standard BSA

forms filed by financial institutions (CTRs, SARs, etc.) almost
at 100%.

• If include FBARs and Forms 8300 (which still can be filed in

paper format) the number drops to about 97%. FBARs are a
relatively small part of the overall BSA filings.

FinCEN Notice re: Mandatory E-Filing (February 23,
2012)
31

• Financial institutions were generally required to file all reports

electronically (except CMIR and Form 8300) by July 1, 2012.
• Financial institutions were not required to use new CTR and SAR

forms until March 31, 2013 (allowing time for software updates
for new forms).
• Announced exemption from general BSA e-filing requirement for

FBARs through June 30, 2013 (the 2012 filing season).

FinCEN Announces Proposed Update of Form TD F 90-22.1 (March
2013) F.R. Doc 2013--4936
32

• Will standardize format of form to be like other BSA

electronically filed reports.
• Will add capability for third party preparer to file report.
•

•

To include preparer identification section

Will add “type of TIN” (SSN/ITIN, EIN, foreign).

• Will add check box for “amount unknown” with respect to highest

value of account.

FinCEN Announces It Will Promulgate New Form for
FBAR Filing By Spouses and Third Parties (July 29, 2013)
33

• New Form 114a.
• Maintained by third party and provided on request to FinCEN or IRS.
• Spouse can authorize other spouse to file.
• A preparer who wishes to file his clients FBAR must register as a

filer with FinCEN and file the FBAR under that account:

Can an attorney, CPA, or an enrolled agent submit an FBAR via the BSA E-Filing
System on behalf of a client?
An attorney, CPA, or an enrolled agent always may assist its clients in the
preparation of electronic BSA forms for BSA E-Filing, including the FBAR.
Consistent with FinCEN's recent proposal to provide for approved third-party filing
of the FBAR, if an attorney, CPA, or enrolled agent has been provided documented
authority by the legally obligated filers to sign and submit FBARs on their behalf
through the BSA E-Filing System, that attorney, CPA, or enrolled agent can do so

through a single BSA E-Filing account established for the attorney, CPA, or enrolled
agent. If such authority is not provided, the filings must be signed and submitted
through a BSA E-Filing account unique to each client.

http://bsaefiling.fincen.treas.gov/FAQs.html#categ_01_quest_04

New Form 114 Issued October, 2013 – Contains
Declaration for Filer to Sign Authorizing Preparer:
34

“I/we declare that I/we have provided information concerning [FILL IN
NUMBER] foreign bank and financial account(s) for the filing year ending
December 31 [ENTER YEAR] to the preparer listed in Part II; that this
information is to the best of my/our knowledge true correct and complete;
that I/we authorize the preparer listed in Part II to compete and submit to
the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (FinCEN) a Report of Foreign
Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR) based on the information that I/we
have provided; and that I/we acknowledge that the preparer listed in Part II
to receive information from FinCEN, answer inquiries and resolve issues
relating to this submissions. I/we acknowledge that, notwithstanding this
declaration, it is my/our legal responsibility, not that of the preparer listed
in Part II, to timely file and FBAR if required by law to do so.”

FinCEN Notice - September 30, 2013
35

• New Form - FinCEN 114
• Transmitter/Filer/Third Party Preparer
•

Envisions possible transmission by third parties who are not
“preparers.”

• New version gives filer ability to select “late filing reason” code:
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
G.
H.
I.
Z.

Forgot to file
Did not know that I had to file
Thought account balance was below reporting threshold
Did not know account qualified as foreign
Account statement not received in time
Account statement lost (replacement requested)
Late receiving missing required account information
Unable to obtain joint spouse signature in time
Unable to access BSA E-Filing System
Other (narrative to be entered by filer)

Batch Filing (September 30, 2013)
36

•

New batch filing capabilities
•

Electronic file created by a batch file creation software program (either
created in-house or purchased from a third party vendor).
Specifications for the files are on the FinCEN website

•

Filers can test batch files on the BSA E-File System

•

Using VPN device or Sterling Commerce’s Connect: Direct software
•
•

Information on these options can be obtained at 1-866-346-9478 or by
email BSAEFilingHelp@fincen.gov
Secure Data Transfer Mode (SDTM) users can submit a single file
containing the FBAR batch data

 Acknowledgement - FinCEN will send a file with acknowledgement

for each record received as part of a batch file, including error
codes if applicable.

Changes to Instructions related to E-Filing
(2013)
37
•

Special instructions for addresses
•
•

US addresses required to match USPS city name
• Use abbreviations at: https://www.usps.com/ship/official-abbreviations.htm
Canadian addresses
• use Canadian Post Corporation codes at:
http://www.canadapost.ca/tools/pg/manual/PGaddress-e.asp#1380608

•

Mexican states and territories
• use the ISO 3166-2 three letter codes found at:

•

All other countries
• use the ISO 3166-1 two letter country codes found at:
http://www.iso.org/iso/country_names_and_code_elements

http://www.commondatahub.com/live/geography/state_province_region/iso_3166_2_state_codes

•

Instructions related to telephone numbers (single string)

•

Round up to next whole dollar

•

Instructions regarding entering names:
•
•

Spanish names (first name, father’s last name, mother’s last name) – enter both last names
in last name field.
Asian last names (last name, multiple first names) – enter the multiple first names in the
first name field (no entry for middle name). The example given is a Korean name.

Changes to Instructions (continued)
38

• If filing late because of earlier waiver (e.g. FinCEN Notice 20111), enter “z” in late filing reason box and identify the waiver by
number in the provided text field
• Filer type: Special instructions for disregarded entity: type of
legal entity, e.g. limited liability company, followed by “D.E.”
• New Third Party Preparer Section (Items 47-59)
• Name of firm or self-employed preparer
• TIN of employee or self-employed preparer (PTIN, or
SSN/ITIN)
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ENFORCEMENT, AUDITS,
LESSONS LEARNED

IRS OVDI: Offshore Voluntary Disclosure Program
Details and Updates
Kelley C. Miller
Reed Smith LLP
kmiller@reedsmith.com

OVDI: Offshore Voluntary Disclosure Program
• Background and Overview
• To OVDI or not OVDI: Who should come forward?
• What if only delinquency is/are unfiled FBARs?

• FBAR and OVDI: What penalties are avoided?
• 31 U.S.C. Section 5321(a)(5)
• 31 U.S.C. Section 5322

• FBAR and OVDI: What must be filed?
• Filing procedure
42

OVDI: Offshore Voluntary Disclosure Program
• Procedure
• Pre-clearance
• OVDI letters
• Completing the package

• Timeframe; SOL issues

• Commonly raised issues; Form 906
• Is your client a good case for opt-out?
43

Igor S. Drabkin

Holtz, Slavett & Drabkin, APLC
310-550-6200
idrabkin@hsdtaxlaw.com












Compliance and enforcement authority for
FBARs is delegated to the IRS.
Criminal investigations and civil examinations
of Foreign Bank Account issues are likely to
increase.
FATCA; Inter-Governmental Agreements;
Prosecution of Swiss Banks;
John Doe Summonses;
Agreements with Banks;
Offshore Voluntary Disclosure Programs.
45



Statute of Limitations
◦ The statue of limitations for FBAR violations is 6
years from the due date of the FBAR return. 31 USC
§ 5321(b).



Criminal exposure and potential criminal
referral.
◦
◦
◦
◦

Source of foreign account;
Unreported income;
Illegal source of income;
Use of foreign nominee entities;
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Communications with accountants are not
privileged.
Documents and information provided to the
accountant may be subject to production
(e.g., tax organizers).
“Required Records Doctrine” – 5th Amendment
privilege against self-incrimination does not
apply when the law (BSA) requires taxpayers
to maintain certain records.
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Information Document Requests (IDR);
Summonses;
Interview of accountants;
Return preparation records;
Grand jury testimony (criminal investigation);
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Criminal Penalties for failure to file FBAR

◦ A fine of up to $250,000, or 5 years in prison, or both.
31 USC § 5322(a).



Civil Penalties
◦ Non-Willful

 Up to $10,000 per violation (i.e, per account, per year). 31
USC §5321(a)(5)
 Mitigation guidelines in IRM 4.26.216.1 provide for tiered
approach to the maximum amount of penalties, depending
on the maximum account balance; give some discretion to
Revenue Agents.

◦ Willful

 Greater of $100,000 or 50% of the balance of the account at
the time of violation. 31 USC §5321(a)(5)
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FBAR penalties can be waived if the holder of
an offshore account can show that the failure
to file an FBAR is due to “reasonable cause”.
◦ Reliance on tax professional;
◦ Was information about foreign account provided to
a tax professional?
◦ Was an erroneous advice given?
◦ Is a tax professional willing to acknowledge
erroneous advice?
◦ Interview by the IRS of client and accountant.

50
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FBAR Penalty Collections
John Colvin
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Procedures For Assessment Of The Unpaid
Penalty
53

 Assessments made by the Detroit Computing Center

are generally referred to Treasury Financial
Management Services for administrative collection.

 Interest on FBAR penalties - If the penalty is not paid

within 30 days of assessment, interest accrues from
date of assessment.

 Delinquency Penalty – a 6% delinquency penalty is

assessed based on amount of penalty unpaid 90 days
after assessment.

See 31 U.S.C. §3717(b); IRM § 4.26.17.4.3(6)

Authority To Collect
54

 The IRS has been delegated the authority to assess FBAR

penalties in 31 C.F.R §1010.810(g) (former §103.56(g)), but it
does not have the authority to enforce collection activity.
(“Collection is not delegated any enforcement authority with
respect to FBAR penalties.” IRM § 5.21.6.4(2) (02-17-2009)).

 Upon assessment, the IRS makes notice and demand for

payment, and forwards collection information to the
Department of Treasury's Financial Management Services
(FMS). IRM § 4.26.17.4.4(4)(e-f) (0505-2008).

 IRM § 8.11.6 (10-28-2013) provides guidance to Appeals

officers for post-assessment review. If Appeals partially or
fully sustains the FBAR penalty, the case is closed and sent to
FMS. IRM § 8.11.6.8.3 (10-28-2013).

Federal Debt Collection - Statutes And
Regs
55

 FBAR penalties constitute debts owed to an U.S. executive agency. See

31 U.S.C.§ 3701(b)(1)(F) (debts include “any fines or penalties assessed
by an agency”); 31 U.S.C. § 3701(a)(4) (agency means any “agency ... in
the executive, judicial, or legislative branch of Government”); 31 C.F.R.
§ 1010.810(g) and IR-2003-48 (April 10, 2003) (authorizing the IRS to
assess FBAR penalties).
 The IRS is authorized to collect debts using any of the methods

enumerated in 31 U.S.C. § 3711. See 31 C.F.R. § 5.4(a)(6) (authorizing
“Treasury entities” to collect debts by offset of tax refunds or benefits,
private collection agency, credit bureau reporting, administrative wage
garnishment or litigation); see also 31 C.F.R. § 5.1 (“treasury entity”
includes the IRS).

Referral to FMS
56

 The IRS may also refer debts to FMS for collection and, in

the case of debts over 180 days delinquent, IRS must
refer such debts to FMS. 31 C.F.R. §§ 5.4(a)(6) and (7).

 Upon referral, FMS must “take appropriate action to

collect ... the transferred debt ... in accordance with the
statutory and regulatory requirements and authorities
applicable to the debt and the action.” 31 C.F.R. §
285.12(c)(2).

 If collection efforts are unsuccessful, then FMS refers

debts to another debt collection center, a private
collection contractor, or the Department of Justice for
litigation. 31 C.F.R. § 285.12(c)(2).

Basic Federal Debt Collection Options
57

 The federal government is required to take “all appropriate

steps to collect [any] debt ... owed to any executive, judicial, or
legislative agency.” 31 U.S.C. § 3711(g)(9).
The available debt collection methods include:
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
G.
H.

Administrative offset;
Tax refund offset;
Federal salary offset;
Non-federal employee wage garnishment;
Debt referral to private collection contractors;
Debt referral to agencies operating a debt collection center;
Reporting of delinquencies to credit reporting bureaus;
Litigation or foreclosure.

31 U.S.C. §§ 3711(g)(9)(A) through (H).

Administrative Offset
58
 The federal government may offset federal benefits to collect any non-

tax debt. 31 U.S.C. § 3716; see also 31 C.F.R. § 285.4 (FMS may collect
delinquent, non-tax debts by offsetting federal benefit payments); 31
C.F. R. § 285.5(a) (FMS administers centralized offset through the
Treasury Offset Program (TOP)); 31 C.F.R. § 5.10 (When centralized
administrative offset through the TOP is not available or appropriate, the
IRS may collect debts directly using non-centralized administrative
offset.).

 Even federal benefit programs that statutorily proscribe garnishment or

levy of benefits are subject to administrative offset, pursuant to 31
U.S.C. § 3716(c)(3)(A)(i). Treasury regulations permit the offset of such
benefits, except those for which there is a statutory proscription against
offset. 31 C.F.R. § 285.5(e)(2)(v). For example, administrative offsets
can capture Social Security benefits, for which Congress provided that
“none of the moneys paid or payable or rights existing under this title
shall be subject to execution, levy, attachment, garnishment, or other
legal process, or to the operation of any bankruptcy or insolvency law.”
42 U.S.C. § 407 [§ 207 of the Social Security Act].

Use Of Administrative Offset:
Prerequisites
59


Administrative offset may be used only after there has been an attempt to
collect the amount owed from the debtor directly. 31 U.S.C. § 3716(a).



If direct collection is unsuccessful, the agency must then provide the debtor:
“(1) written notice of the type and amount of the claim, the intention of the
head of the agency to collect the claim by administrative offset, and an
explanation of the rights of the debtor under this section; (2) an opportunity
to inspect and copy the records of the agency related to the claim; (3) an
opportunity for a review within the agency of the decision of the agency
related to the claim; and (4) an opportunity to make a written agreement
with the head of the agency to repay the amount of the claim.” 31 U.S.C. §
3716(a); see also 31 C.F.R. § 285.5(g).



The offset amount from a monthly covered benefit payment will be the
lesser of (1) the amount of the debt, with interest, penalties and
administrative costs; (2) an amount equal to 15% of the monthly covered
benefit payment; or (3) the amount, if any, by which the monthly covered
benefit payment exceeds $750. 31 C.F.R. § 285.4(e)(1).

Exemptions from Administrative Offset
60


Exempt by statute: Benefits payable under the Higher Education Act of 1965 are
exempt by statute. 31 U.S.C. § 3716(c)(1)(C).



Exempt by regulation: (1) Black Lung Benefits Act Part C benefit payments, (2)
Railroad Retirement Board tier 2 payments, (3) payments made under the tariff
laws of the U.S., (4) Veterans Affairs benefit payments to the extent such
payments are exempt from offset pursuant to 38 U.S.C. § 5301, and (5) federal
loan payments other than travel advances. 31 C.F.R. § 285.5(e)(2).



Exempt in part: With respect to benefits payable pursuant to the Social Security
Act, part B of the Black Lung Benefits Act, or any law administered by the Railroad
Retirement Board, the first $9,000 that a debtor is entitled to receive within a 12month period is exempt from offset. 31 U.S.C. § 3716(c)(3)(A)(ii).



The Secretary of the Treasury may exempt payments under means-tested
programs or under other programs where justification is provided, when requested
by the head of the respective agency. 31 U.S.C. § 3716(c)(3)(B).

Administrative Offset - Statutes Of
Limitations
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 There is no statute of limitations with respect to collection of

debts through administrative offset of federal benefits. 31 U.S.C.
§ 3716(e)(1) (“Notwithstanding any other provision of law,
regulation, or administrative limitation, no limitation on the period
within which an offset may be initiated or taken pursuant to this
section shall be effective.”); 31 C.F.R. § 285.5(d)(3)(v) (“Debts
may be collected irrespective of the amount of time the debt has
been outstanding.”); Lockhart v. United States, 546 U.S. 142
(2005) (affirming offset of Social Security benefits to collect
student loan debt outstanding for over 10 years).
 NOTE: IRM § 8.11.6.3.1.1(2) (10-28-2013) indicates that there is

a10-year collection period when collecting by offset, but this
conflicts with 31 U.S.C. § 3716(e)(1).

Tax Refund Offsets
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 The federal government may offset federal tax refunds to collect any debt.

31 U.S.C. § 3720A(a); 31 C.F.R. § 5.11 (IRS may use federal tax refund offset
to collect a debt; debts must be sent to FMS for collection by this method);
31 C.F.R. § 285.2 (FMS may collect debts by federal tax refund offset).

 In situations where joint tax returns are filed, but only one spouse is liable,

the non-liable spouse may secure his proper share of a tax refund from
which an offset was made. 31 C.F.R. § 285.2(f).

 Tax refund offsets may be used only after an attempt to collect directly from

the debtor. 31 U.S.C. § 3720A(b)(5); 31 C.F.R. § 285.2(d). If direct
collection is unsuccessful, the agency must: (1) notify the debtor of its intent
to collect the debt by tax refund offset, (2) provide at least 60 days to
present evidence that all or part of the debt is not past-due or legally
enforceable, and (3) consider any evidence presented by the debtor and
determine that the debt is past due and legally enforceable. 31 U.S.C. §
3720A(b); 31 C.F.R. § 285.2(d).

Federal Salary Offsets
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Federal salary offset is another available option for the federal government to collect any
non-tax debt. 5 U.S.C. § 5514(a)(1); 31 C.F.R. §§ 5.12 31 and § 285.7(a)(1). This is generally
done by FMS, but it can also be done directly by the IRS); 31 C.F.R. § 285.7(a)(1) (FMS may
collect debts by federal salary offset.



The salary deductions may be made from a federal employee's basic pay, special pay,
incentive pay, retired pay, retainer pay or other authorized pay from federal employment. 5
U.S.C. § 5514(a)(1); 31 C.F.R. §§ 5.12 285.7(d)(3)(iii) (requiring IRS and FMS to follow offset
procedures enumerated in 5 U.S.C. § 5514).



The government may withhold up to 15% of the debtor's disposable pay, meaning the wages
remaining after legally-mandated withholdings are deducted. 5 U.S.C. §§ 5514(a)(1) through
(5)(A); 31 C.F.R. §§ 5.12(g)(3) and 285.7(g).



The agency must provide the debtor with:
1)
30 days written notice, informing such individual of the nature and amount of the
indebtedness, the intention of the agency to collect the debt through deductions from
pay, and an explanation of the individual's rights;
2)
An opportunity to inspect and copy government records relating to the debt;
3)
An opportunity to enter into a written agreement with the agency to establish a
schedule for the repayment of the debt;
4)
An opportunity for a hearing on the determination of the agency concerning the
existence or the amount of the debt.

5 U.S.C. § 5514(a)(2); 31 C.F.R. § 285.7(i).1

Wage Garnishments
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 The federal government may garnish wages of non-government

employees to collect any debt owed, pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3720D(a); 31
C.F.R. § 285.11(a) (FMS may collect debt by garnishing wages of nonfederal employees); 31 C.F.R. § 5.13(a) (IRS may collect debt by
garnishing wages of non-federal employees if all provisions of 31 C.F.R. §
285.11 are followed).

 Non-federal employee wage garnishment provisions are similar to those

for federal salary offset. The government may garnish up to 15% of the
debtor's disposable pay. 31 U.S.C. § 3720D(a); 31 C.F.R. § 285.11(i).

 In the case of financial hardship, the agency must decrease the amount

garnished to reflect the debtor's financial condition. 31 C.F.R. § 285.11(k).

 The government may not garnish the wages of a debtor who has been

involuntarily separated from employment until the debtor has been
reemployed continuously for at least 12 months. 31 C.F.R. § 285.11(j).

Private Collection Agencies And Credit
Reporting
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 The government may also contract with a third party for

collection services to recover any debt owed to the U.S. 31
U.S.C. § 3718(a); 31 C.F.R. § 5.15 (IRS may refer debts to
private collection agencies; debts must be transferred to
FMS for collection by this method); 31 C.F.R. § 285.12(c).
(FMS may transfer debts to private collection agencies).

 Delinquent debts are reported to credit bureaus pursuant to

31 U.S.C. § 3711(e); 31 C.F.R. §§ 901.4, 285.12(c)(2), and
5.14.

 The government must send notice to the debtor at least 60

days prior to reporting a delinquent debt to a consumer
reporting agency. 31 C.F.R. §§ 5.14 and 5.4.

Lawsuits To Collect The FBAR Penalty
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 The government may collect debts by judicial action. 31

U.S.C. § 3711(g)(9)(H). The IRS must refer debts to the
Department of Justice for litigation when “aggressive
collection activity” has been unsuccessful. 31 C.F.R. §
5.16(b).

 Debts transferred to FMS are also referred to the

Department of Justice for litigation, when other collection
activities have failed. 31 C.F.R. § 285.12(c)(2).

 The statutory provisions specific to FBAR penalties require

that the government file suit to collect the FBAR penalties
within two years of the penalty assessment date (or if later
the date that a criminal conviction for willfully failing to file
an FBAR became final). 31 U.S.C. § 5321(b)(2).

Lawsuits To Collect The FBAR Penalty – Procedural
Matters
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 Court reviews penalty de novo (no presumption of

correctness). See United States v. Williams, 2010 WL
3473311 (E.D. Va. 2010).

 Probably a right to jury trial.

See Tull v. United States, 481

U.S. 412, 425 (1987) (finding right to jury trial in
government suit to assess penalties under Clean Water
Act).

 Collateral estoppel : Where the FBAR penalty was assessed

after a criminal conviction under 31 U.S.C. § 5322 for
willful failure to file an FBAR penalty, the person against
whom the penalty is assessed is almost certainly estopped
from challenging liability.

Federal Debt Collection Procedures Act
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Judgments for FBAR penalties are not subject to collection under Title 26; they
must be collected under FDCPA. 28 USC §§ 3001-3308.



FDCPA provides three remedies for enforcing civil judgments: execution,
garnishment, and installment payment orders. Courts can issue any other writs
under 28 USC § 1651 to support these remedies.



28 USC § 3202(b)– when application is made for a writ of execution, a writ of
garnishment, or an installment payment order, the government must prepare a
notice to debtor for service by the clerk of the court.



The notice advises debtor property has been seized, identifies debt owed,
describes potential exemptions, explains procedure and time (20 days) to request
hearing, and gives notice of intent to sell the property.



28 USC § 3014(a)(2)(A) -rule for determining which state's exemption law is
applicable.



The debtor can only claim exemptions, object to procedural defects, or for default
judgments, argue validity of claim and good cause to set aside.

FDCPA – Sale of Property
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28 U.S.C. § 3007 - Sale of Perishable Property



28 U.S.C. § 3010 - Co-owned Property



28 U.S.C. § 3015 - Discovery as to debtor’s financial
condition



28 U.S.C. § 3201 – Judgment Liens



28 U.S.C. § 3202 – Enforcement of Judgments




(e) property subject to sale may be sold by judicial sale under
28 USC §§ 2001, 2002 and 2004, or by execution sale under
28 U.S.C. § 3203(g)

28 U.S.C. § 3203 – Execution (real and personal property)

FDCPA – Garnishments
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Government must file application for writ of garnishment in
accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 3205 that includes balance due under
judgment and a belief that garnishee possesses property in which the
debtor possesses a substantial nonexempt interest.



A wage garnishment is limited to 25% of disposable income (75% of
disposable income is exempt). A garnishment writ has continuing
effect. 28 U.S.C. §§ 3205 and 3002(9).



Writ is issued ex parte with notice given to garnishee and debtor.



Writ directs garnishee to withhold property and file answer, and
gives instructions to debtor about filing objections and requesting
hearing.

FDCPA – Court Ordered Installment
Payments
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Court-ordered installment payments under 28 U.S.C. § 3204 are particularly
effective against self-employed debtors - lawyers, doctors, accountants, and
consultants - who are often immune to wage garnishments.



Government must file a motion demonstrating debtor has substantial earnings
from self-employment, or is diverting or concealing earnings.



An installment payment order cannot be obtained if there is a writ of garnishment
on the same earnings and based on the same debt.



Government can request monthly or shorter period payments.



Government can request a specific amount, payment of all earnings in excess of a
floor amount, or percentage of earnings.



Parties can seek modification under 28 U.S.C. § 3204(b) for change in financial
circumstances or discovery of previously undisclosed assets.



Failure to comply can result in fines or conditional imprisonment for civil
contempt.

Other Collection Tools
72

Sale of Property
 28 U.S.C. § 2001(a) - procedures for a public auction sale of real
property.
 28 U.S.C. § 2001(b) - procedures for a private sale of real property.
Sale of Stocks, Bonds, Notes and Securities
 U.S. Dep’t of Treasury, Bureau of Public Debt, and U.S. Marshall
Service, Assets Forfeiture Office - federal agencies that assist in selling
stocks, bonds, notes, and other securities through contracts with
brokers.
 Government counsel must provide agency with: (1) a copy of the
certificate; (2) a certified copy of any court order or writ showing that
the Government has a right to possess it; and (3) a certified copy of any
court order permitting the Government to sell it.
Court Orders and Contempt
 SEC v. Bilzerian, 112 F. Supp. 2d 12 (D.D.C. 2000) (defendant ordered to
disgorge foreign assets, and civil contempt for failure to comply).

Other Collection Tools - Writ of ne exeat

republica
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 District court may issue writs when necessary and appropriate in aid

of jurisdiction and agreeable to usage and principles of law. 28
U.S.C. § 1651

 Writ of

ne exeat republica – where government proves that debtor

intends to quickly depart U.S., there is an amount due and payable to
the government, and debtor has sufficient foreign assets but
insufficient domestic assets to pay the debt.

 Writ affords means of retaining equitable jurisdiction over debtor,

assuring that debtor will remain within the jurisdiction of the court.

 Writ is an extraordinary step and may be obtained

the discretion of the court.

ex parte, but at

 Debtor is entitled to a full hearing and burden is on government to

prove judicial requirements are satisfied and writ should remain.

Dischargeability in Bankruptcy
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In United States v. Simonelli, 614 F. Supp. 2d 241 (D. Conn. 2008), the
government filed a complaint seeking a judgment for the FBAR penalty, accrued
interest and the failure to pay penalty that arises under 31 U.S.C. § 3717(e)(2).
Simonelli conceded liability for penalty but argued that the liability was
discharged in his bankruptcy, because it was, in essence, a tax penalty.



The government moved for summary judgment, arguing that the penalty is a
general civil penalty (not a tax penalty) and therefore excepted from discharge
under 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(7), which provides that a debtor will not be discharged
from any debt “for a fine, penalty, or forfeiture payable to and for the benefit of a
governmental unit, and is not compensation for actual pecuniary loss, other than a
tax penalty.”



The court agreed, noting that § 523(a)(7), “creates a broad [exception to
discharge in bankruptcy] for all penal sanctions, whether they be denominated
fines, penalties, or forfeitures. Congress included two qualifying phrases; the
fines must be both ‘to and for the benefit of a governmental unit,’ and ‘not
compensation for actual pecuniary loss.”’ 614 F. Supp. 2d at 242 (quoting Kelly
v. Robinson, 479 U.S. 36, 52 (1986)).



The court noted that nothing ties the amount of the FBAR penalty to an amount of
tax due. 614 F. Supp. 2d at 244.

